
6 

 

 
Pasadena Star  1915 



7 

 

MARSTON & VAN PELT 

Architects 
 

Born in Oakland in 1883, Sylvanus Marston moved with 

his family later that year to Pasadena, where his father 

had purchased a tract of citrus groves in the area near 

present-day California Boulevard and Oakland Avenue. 

 

A fourth-generation architect (his grandfather built 

lighthouses along the coast and barracks at the Presidio), 

Marston went east to Cornell University to study 

architecture after attending Pomona College for two 

years.  He graduated from Cornell in 1907 and returned 

to Pasadena where he started his own firm in 1908, after 

training one year with Myron Hunt.  In 1910 he married 

Edith Hatfield, and after honeymooning in then-distant 

Hawaii, the young couple settled down in a Marston-

designed house at 661 South El Molino Avenue, 

Pasadena. 

 

Marston's early residential designs are firmly in the Craftsman tradition popular at the time.  

However, the interiors often contained surprises, such as the vaulted ceiling in the Lacey House 

at 1115 East Woodbury Road, Altadena, and refined brick fireplaces in place of the heavy 

boulder ones favored in the Craftsman era.  His early commercial work and larger residential 

designs followed the Beaux Arts tradition in which he had been trained.  Later, he and his 

associates worked with an incredible array of styles, including just about every possible type of 

Period Revival.  Examples of the variety of Marston’s residential architecture include the 

Buckingham House at 325 Bellefontaine Street, Pasadena (1918-19), in the Queen Anne style; 

the Spanish Colonial Garford House at 1126 Hillcrest Avenue, Pasadena (1919); and a French 

Provincial mansion at 293 South Grand Avenue, Pasadena (1926) 

 

By 1925, Marston's firm had become one of the largest in Southern California, with offices in 

both Pasadena and Los Angeles.  Marston was made a "fellow" of the American Institute of 

Architects and served twice as its President.  He died in 1946.  The Pasadena Museum of History 

has a complete list of Marston's works, including some photographs and drawings.  

 

Garrett Beekman Van Pelt was born in Milwaukee, Wisconsin in 1879.  He was educated at the 

Chicago Art Institute's School of Architecture.  After graduation in 1912, he traveled extensively 

in Europe for eighteen months, sketching the local architecture.  This early exposure to European 

designs undoubtedly influenced his later penchant for period revival styles. 

 

Upon moving to Pasadena in 1915, Van Pelt entered into partnership with Sylvanus Marston.  In 

1921 they took on another partner, Edgar Maybury.  Van Pelt was, in the words of another 

architect, the artist of the firm, bringing a sense of scale and lightness to Marston's 

predominantly dark and heavy designs.  In the 1920s he participated in the firm's commissions 

for the Pasadena Athletic Club at the northwest corner of Los Robles and Green (now 
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demolished), the Security Bank Building at Colorado and 

Lake (also now gone), Turner-Stevens Mortuary at Holly and 

Marengo, and many others during the time when Marston, 

Van Pelt and Maybury created the commercial and cultural 

setting for the new Civic Center.   

 

Van Pelt's own singular contribution was the Peters Building 

on the northwest corner of Euclid and Green (now also 

demolished).  Several other designs are also attributed to him: 

the Grace Nicholson Building on Los Robles (now the Pacific 

Asia Museum), the Hill Avenue and Santa Catalina Branch 

Libraries, and the Westminster Presbyterian Church.  Van 

Pelt's major residential work during this period included the 

Peters residence (1926), the Norris residence (1930), the 

Staats residence (1929), and his own home at 1212 South El 

Molino (1930).  In 1926 Van Pelt published a book entitled 

Old Architecture of Southern Mexico.  It is full of photographs that he took during his extensive 

travels there.  

  

Upon Van Pelt's nomination to the American Institute of Architects, of which he had become a 

member in 1943 and was made a Fellow in 1964, it was stated that this "was an architect of 

distinction (who) worked with real understanding of the architecture of the period from which he 

was drawing his inspiration.  He was extremely versatile and equally talented in almost all of the 

styles." 

 

Another interesting comment on the firm of Marston and Van Pelt, can be found in Around 

Pasadena by Sills and Manion: "During the 20s no architectural firm had more influence in 

Pasadena than the firm of Marston and Van Pelt.  Although they did not expound upon a new 

architectural form, they showed amazing ability in their prolific and versatile designs..." 

 

In 1927 Van Pelt left the Marston firm and the following year went into partnership with George 

Lind.  The firm of Van Pelt and Lind was responsible for much of the development of Santa 

Anita Oaks in Arcadia during the 1930s.  They also designed low-cost housing in Palm Springs.  

Jurgensens Market on California Blvd. in Pasadena was another of their projects (since 

remodeled into Wild Oats market).  The Owsley house (1935) and the Robert Bassett house 

(1937) are considered two of their most important residential designs.  The partnership was 

dissolved in 1941, whereupon Van Pelt went into business for himself. 

 

After World War II, Van Pelt returned to Mexico and bought a house in San Miguel de Allende.  

However, he soon returned to the United States, settling in Montecito where he had built a house.  

He executed his last large commission there--the Armour house, designed for the heir of the 

Armour Packing Co.  Van Pelt officially retired in 1970 and died in November 1972 at the  

age of 93.     

 

A profusely illustrated book on Marston and his partners, entitled Sylvanus Marston: Pasadena’s 

Quintessential Architect, by Kathleen Tuttle, was published in 2001 by Hennessey & Ingalls.   
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